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From: John Kraft

To: Keith Freeman; Tiffany Henyard; Alison Key
Cc: Kirk Allen

Subject: FOIA Request (Dolton) - 1-30-2024

Date: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 6:02:00 PM

On behalf of the Edgar County Watchdogs, Inc., and in accordance with the Freedom of
Information Act, I am requesting the following.

If you are not the FOIA officer, please forward to the FOIA officer as required by statute.

Electronic copies requested.

e Copy of all records of payments made to Keith Freeman between January 1, 2023
and January 30, 2024.

Electronic copies are requested.
This is not a commercial request.

This is also a request for fee waiver, should any fees be imposed, as this information bears on
the public business of the local and state governments in Illinois and will be used to inform
citizens of the actions of their public officials, of their rights and responsibilities, of news and
current or passing events, and for articles of opinion or features of interest to the public. The
principal purpose of this request is to access and disseminate information regarding the health,
safety, and welfare or the legal rights of the general public and is not for the principal purpose
of gaining a personal or commercial benefit

1, and the organizations I represent, qualify as both media and non-profit under the definitions
in Section 2 (c-10) ("Commercial purpose"”), Section 2 (f) ("News media"), Section 2 (g)
("Recurrent requester"), and Section 2 (h) ("Voluminous request") of the Freedom of
Information Act, for the purposes of being exempt to the provisions of Section 3.1 (Requests
for commercial purposes), Section 3.2 (Recurrent requesters), Section 3.6 (Voluminous
requests), and Section 6 (Authority to charge fees). Additionally, I, and the organizations 1
represent, qualify as “news media” under the Illinois Vehicle Code, Section 1-148.5.

Thanks,

John Kraft

Edgar County Watchdogs, Inc.
Box 124

Paris, Illinois 61944

john(@illinoisleaks.com



217-808-2527
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2/12/24, 8:05 PM Gmail - in re ECW II v Dolton - Freeman Payments January 2024

N. Gmaill Edward Weinhaus <eaweinhaus@gmail.com>

in re ECW Il v Dolton - Freeman Payments January 2024

Edward Weinhaus <eaweinhaus@gmail.com> Fri, Feb 9, 2024 at 3:03 PM
To: KFREEMAN@vodolton.org, THENYARD@vodolton.org, AKEY @vodolton.org

Cc: Adam Florek <aflorek@florekllc.com>

Dear Village of Dolton:

Please see the attached communication requesting records. Nobody from the village has responded to the request. Mr.
Florek and | intend to file a suit on the sender's behalf. (We have filed other suits, similarly situated.)

Please reach out today or Monday if you would prefer to speak before a suit is filed.
We are in suit preparation now.

Coach

FOIASolved
Attorney for Edgar County Watchdogs, Inc.

Coach
Edward "Coach" Weinhaus, Esq.

Continuing Lecturer (in Exile), UCLA Anderson School of Management
eaweinhaus@gmail.com

314 580 9580

ﬂ FOIA Request (Dolton) - 1-30-2024.pdf
202K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=98{634d 1 8b&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1790456714260115997 &simpl=msg-{:1790456714260115997 1/1
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From: Alison Key < akey@vodolton.org>

Sent: Friday, January 5, 2024 2:47 PM

To: John Kraft <john@illinoisleaks.com>
Subject: Re: FOIA Request (Dolton) - 1-5-2024

Mr. Kraft just as a point of reference, Keith Freeman has instructed staff not to reply to any FOIA request
that is submitted by me. I see you address your request to him. Hopefully, you will get what you are
requesting.

ALISON KEY
CLERK, VILLAGE OF DOLTON

14122 DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING DRIVE

DOLTON, ILLINOIS 60419

EMAIL: AKEY@VODOLTON.ORG

OFFICE PHONE: (708)201-3295

Click Here To Submit A FOIA Request
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February 9, 2024

PUBLIC ACCESS OPINION 24-002
(Request for Review 2023 PAC 79369)

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT:
Duty to Respond to FOIA Requests

Mr. Andrew Schroedter
Investigative Producer
WGN-TV

2501 West Bradley Place
Chicago, Illinois 60618

Freedom of Information Officer
Village of Dolton

14122 Dr. Martin Luther King Drive
Dolton, Illinois 60419

Dear Mr. Schroedter and Freedom of Information Officer:

This binding opinion is issued by the Attorney General pursuant to section 9.5(f)
of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) (5 ILCS 140/9.5(f) (West 2022), as amended by
Public Act 103-069, effective January 1, 2024). For the reasons discussed below, this office
concludes that the Village of Dolton (Village) violated section 3(d) of FOIA (5 ILCS 140/3(d)
(West 2022)) by failing to comply with, deny in whole or in part, or otherwise appropriately
respond to a FOIA request submitted by Mr. Andrew Schroedter.

BACKGROUND

On November 29, 2023, Mr. Schroedter, on behalf of WGN-TV, submitted a
FOIA request to the Village seeking:

+ Copies of documents sufficient to show total payments to
Tiffany Henyard in 2023.
+ A copy of the current lease for Mayor Henyard's village vehicle.
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Mr. Andrew Schroedter
Freedom of Information Officer
February 9, 2024

Page 3

On January 11, 2024, the Public Access Bureau sent via U.S. Postal Mail a letter
to the Village's Freedom of Information Officer stating that this office had not received a
response to its December 27, 2023, letter; the correspondence included a copy of the December
27,2023, letter and again requested a response.’ This office also e-mailed a copy of that
correspondence to the FOIA Officer's e-mail address.® The Village did not respond to the Public
Access Bureau's January 11, 2024, letter. On January 26, 2024, the Public Access Counselor in
the Public Access Bureau sent an e-mail to the FOIA Officer inquiring about the status of its
response to Mr. Schroedter's November 29, 2023, FOIA request; the FOIA Officer did not
respond.’

On January 29, 2024, Mr. Schroedter sent this office correspondence which
indicated that he still had not received a response to the November 29, 2023, FOIA request at
issue in this matter.!® On January 30, 2024, the Village e-mailed Mr. Schroedter a letter, dated
January 17, 2024, which asserted that the Village has located five pages of records responsive to
his request, and further asserted that those pages, with redactions, were attached to the letter.!!
Mr. Schroedter responded to that e-mail, alerting the Village that there were no records attached
to its e-mail, and asking how a request seeking copies of payments to the Mayor, a vehicle lease,
and five months of credit card statements, could total only five pages of responsive records.'
The Village acknowledged receipt of that e-mail but did not provide Mr. Schroedter the five
pages of records, or any other records.!> As of the date of the issuance of this binding opinion,
this office has not received confirmation or any indication from the Village or Mr. Schroedter
that the Village has substantively responded to the FOIA request.

Letter from Leah Bartelt, Public Access Counselor, Public Access Bureau, Office of the Attorney
General, to Freedom of Information Officer, Village of Dolton (January 11, 2024).

8E-mail from Leah Bartelt, Public Access Counselor, Public Access Bureau, Office of the
Attorney General, to Freedom of Information Officer, [Village of Dolton] (January 11, 2024).

°E-mail from Leah Bartelt, Public Access Bureau, Office of the Attorney General, to
foia@vodolton.org (January 26, 2024).

'°E-mail from Andrew Schroedter, [Investigative Producer, Chicago's Very Own WGN,] to Leah
Bartelt, [Public Access Counselor, Public Access Bureau, Office of the Attorney General] (January 29, 2024).

""E-mail from foia@vodolton.org to Andrew Schroedter (January 30, 2024), attaching letter from
Freedom of Information Officer, Village of Dolton, to Andrew Schroedter, [Investigative Producer, Chicago's Very
Own WGN,] (January 17, 2024).

"2E-mail from Andrew Schroedter, Investigative Producer, Chicago's Very Own WGN, to
fola@vodolton.org (January 30, 2024).

E-mail from foia@vodolton.org to Andrew Schroedter (January 30, 2024).
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Mr. Andrew Schroedter
Freedom of Information Officer
February 9, 2024

Page 6

January 1, 2024; 103-554, effective January 1, 2024).'* If the Village determines that any
portion of the responsive records is exempt from disclosure under section 7, it is directed to issue
a written denial that fully complies with the requirements of section 9(a) of FOIA (5 ILCS
140/9(a) (West 2022)).

This opinion shall be considered a final decision of an administrative agency for
the purposes of administrative review under the Administrative Review Law. 735 ILCS 5/3-101
et seq. (West 2022). An aggrieved party may obtain judicial review of the decision by filing a
complaint for administrative review with the Circuit Court of Cook County or Sangamon County
within 35 days of the date of this decision naming the Attorney General of Illinois and Mr.
Andrew Schroedter as defendants. See 5 ILCS 140/11.5 (West 2022).

Sincerely,

KWAME RAOUL
ATTORNEY GENFERAL

Jeneral

“Because the Village did not comply with the statutory requirements for responding to Mr.
Schroedter's FOIA request, the Village is precluded from treating the request as unduly burdensome or imposing
copying fees for the responsive records. 5 ILCS 140/3(d) (West 2022).
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